	[image: ETF_logo_large]
	
STATE OF WISCONSIN
Department of Employee Trust Funds
A. John Voelker
SECRETARY


	4822 Madison Yards Way
Madison, WI 53705-9100
P. O. Box 7931
Madison, WI  53707-7931
http://etf.wi.gov



Date:		November 4, 2024

To:		All Potential Proposers to RFP ETE0061 

RE:		Addendum No. 4 to Request for Proposals (RFP) ETE0061
Pension Administration System 
Vendor Questions and Department Answers and changes to: 
Appendix 4 – Mandatory Proposer Qualifications
Appendix 5A – General Essay Questions
Appendix 7A – Non-Functional Essay Questions  

This Addendum is available on ETF’s web site at  https://etf.wi.gov/node/37111


Acknowledgement of receipt of this Addendum No. 4:  

Proposers should acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 4 by providing the information in the table below and including this Page 1 with their Proposal cover letter. 
	Company Name:
	

	Authorized Person (Printed/Typed Name and Title):



	

	Date:
	









1. The following questions from Proposers and answers from the Department are hereby added to RFP ETE0061: 
	Q #
	RFP Section /Appendix #
	RFP Page
	Question/Rationale
	Department Answer

	Q1
	Appendix 4, Section 4.7
	1
	Please describe any alternative requirements that ETF may consider to be acceptable to demonstrate the vendor has appropriate expertise and experience configuring and deploying a pension administration system for organizations of similar size and complexity, including managing a high volume of employer groups. For example, would ETF consider allowing client references to include those with employer groups < 500 (i.e., at least 100), total participants < 250,000 (i.e., at least 75,000 or 100,000), expanding the period of time under consider beyond 5 years (i.e., 7 to 10 years), and clients beyond just public sector? Similarly, would ETF consider a combination of client references as long as they collectively (if not individually) clearly demonstrated the ability to support programs > 250,000 participants and  > 100 employer groups?
	See Addendum 2 published on October 24, 2024. At this time, the Department is not making any additional changes to Section 4.7 in Appendix 4 – Mandatory Proposer Qualifications.

	Q2
	Appendix 4, Section 4.8
	1-2
	Similar to the question related to Appendix 4, Section 4.7, please describe any alternative requirements that ETF may consider to be acceptable to demonstrate the vendor’s key project leaders have appropriate expertise and experience configuring and deploying a pension administration system for organizations of similar size and complexity, including managing a high volume of employer groups. For example, would ETF consider allowing client references to include those with employer groups < 500 (i.e., at least 100), total participants < 250,000 (i.e., at least 75,000 or 100,000), expanding the period of time under consider beyond 5 years (i.e., 7 to 10 years), and clients beyond just public sector? Similarly, would ETF consider a combination of client references as long as they collectively (if not individually) clearly demonstrated the ability to support programs > 250,000 participants and  > 100 employer groups?
	Appendix 4 – Mandatory Proposer Qualifications, Section 4.8 has been amended to allow the lead project manager and lead architect to have a reference with at least 250 employer groups and at least 100,000 participants. See Appendix 4 – Mandatory Proposer Qualifications edits to Section 4.8.

	Q3
	ETE0061 PAS RFP document, Section 1.4, Table 3
	5-6
	While we recognize ETF is primarily seeking pension administration software (versus software bundled with services) that encompasses the requirements outlined in the proposal, we would like to understand ETF’s willingness to consider alternative solution models that would allow different elements of services to be bundled into the proposed solution. Please describe which of the following ETF may be willing to consider beyond the original scope represented in the RFP:
1.	Allow the bidder to retain responsibility for all configuration, testing, and deployment of the platform both initially and ongoing, which includes the transaction engine (PAS), member self-service, employer self-service and other related technology provided by the vendor.
2.	In addition to the scope in #1, allow the bidder to perform most or all back-office tasks that would be performed on the vendor’s technology.
	Please provide any additional services offered by the vendor in Appendix 13 – Cost Proposal, Tab 4 Extension and Optional Costs, Table 3 (Optional): Not scoped in the PAS RFP or 3rd Party Bolt On.


	Q4
	Appendix 7B – Non-Functional Requirements
	ITSM.01.28
	Please describe the scope contemplated in the vendor support of customer questions.
Is the full scope of supporting member/employer inquiries/requests being contemplated?
If not the full scope, would a model where the vendor is the primary party responsible for virtual member interactions (call center, web chat), with ETF retaining “critical” member telephone interactions (i.e., retirement and disability counseling/processing, survivor support, etc.) as well as in-person interactions with members/employers be an option for consideration?
	The full scope of supporting member/employer inquiries/requests is not contemplated as a functional requirement. ETF has a call center which supports member/employer inquiries and requests. However, if this is a service your company offers, please include it in your Appendix 13 – Cost Proposal, Tab 4 Extension and Optional Costs, Table 3 (Optional): Not scoped in the PAS RFP or 3rd Party Bolt On.


	Q5
	Appendix 7B – Non-Functional Requirements
	ITSM.01.28
	Please provide, where possible, historical volumes for virtual interactions (calls, web chats) and in-person interactions with members/employers.
	Recent volumes for virtual ETF interactions are as follows: 
· Member Calls (all ETF activities, includes WRS and non-WRS activities like insurance and deferred compensation):   varies from 11,200-16,500/month. Average 14,300/month.
· Employer Calls: Average 6,000 /year. 
· Web chats – N/A
· Member Online appointments:  varies from 95 – 430/month.
· Average 223/month. 
· In-person interactions with members (appointments):  varies from 80 – 450/month.  Average 235/month.
· In-person interactions with members (webinars):  Average annual attendance 32,500.

	Q6
	Appendix 6B – Functional Requirements.xls
	12 Deferred Compensation
	As a future consideration, please describe ETF’s willingness to consider incorporating full administration (recordkeeping, call center, etc.) of the Deferred Compensation scope by enabling defined contribution modules available in the vendor’s platform.
	ETF conducted an RFP for Administrative Services for the Wisconsin Deferred Compensation Program in 2021 and signed a contract with Empower Retirement, LLC in May 2022 for these services from December 1, 2022, through November 30, 2027, with the option to renew for two (2) additional three (3) year periods. More information on the Deferred Compensation Administration Services Contract can be found on ETF’s website here:
Administrative Services for the Wisconsin Deferred Compensation Program | ETF  

	Q7
	Appendix 6B – Functional Requirements.xls, 21 General System Requirements 
	21.46
	Please estimate the total number of people who may require training by role (i.e., employer, call center representative, processing analyst, finance, IT, etc.).
	ETF estimates the following people may require training:
· ETF administration and call center: 130 staff
· ETF IT: 30-40 staff
· ETF finance: 10 staff
· Employers: 2,500 individuals

	Q8
	Appendix 7A and 7B (hosting requirements and essay questions)
	Multiple
	As you are aware, although long and successfully established in the UK, we are new entrants to the Pension Administration System market in the United States and don’t currently have a US data center.
We plan to replicate our solution in the US using Service Express, our UK data center provider, in their Michigan data center. 
Please can you advise if it will be acceptable to answer all hosting, security, availability, business continuity and disaster recovery requirements and essay questions based on our current UK credentials and how we intend to replicate in the US to meet your requirements?  
	Yes, this is acceptable. Please include when the data center in the United States will be ready to host the proposed solution in your answer to the hosting questions.

	Q9
	Appendix 13 – Cost Proposal
	Tab 4 Extension & Optional Costs
	The cells in this tab are protected. Please can an unprotected version be issued?
	See Addendum 3 published October 29, 2024, and Appendix 13 – Cost Proposal.xls (Tab 4 unlocked) available on the Department’s website.

	Q10
	Appendix 7A – Non-Functional Essay Questions. Question 7A.14
	Page 4
	As our operational services are currently UK-based, our existing credentials and accreditations are correspondingly UK-based. We therefore cannot currently attest to having US credentials. 
We are committed to working with any US clients to either demonstrate the equivalency of UK accreditations or achieve the relevant US credentials. We are comfortable that we would fit into the equivalent standards in the US.
Achieving US credentials will not be possible in time to respond to your RFP and some, e.g. FedRAMP, will require us to have a US sponsor to do so. Therefore, our proposed approach to responding to the RFP is to base this on the UK equivalents we possess. 
Can you please confirm that:
 -  it is not a mandatory requirement to currently hold the relevant US standards/accreditations and therefore our bid will not be disqualified or considered ineligible purely on these grounds.
- it is an acceptable approach for us to respond on the basis of the UK accreditations we hold, plus our commitment to address any gaps this may leave between US and UK standards.

	 
Yes, the Department may consider your proposal if you demonstrate sufficient ability to comply with all applicable US accreditations, credentials, and standards (US standards) without delaying PAS implementation. If a vendor does not currently meet US standards, then ETF expects proposals to demonstrate that proposers are committed and prepared to comply with all applicable US standards by, for example: 
(1) identifying the equivalent non-US standard, 
(2) explaining how it is equivalent to, or providing a comparison to the US standard, 
(3) explaining steps the proposer plans to take to meet US standards, including but not limited to, those that require strict compliance (e.g., IRC, NACHA), and, 
(4) identifying when US standard compliance will be met. 
If future compliance with mandatory requirements is not committed to, or a feasible explanation of compliance is not offered, the proposal may be disqualified or not be scored as high as if current US compliance existed.
Where US standards relate to particular requirements in the RFP, provide your explanation in the correlating essay response: 
· Explain US standards (IRC, etc.) related to 6A.10 – 29 in your response.
· Explain at 7A.79 on ADA standards in 6B 21.51, 7B UX.01.02
· Explain at 7A.80 on USPS standards in 6B 21.54-55
· Explain at 7A.14 (SOC 2, HIPAA, FedRAMP, FIPS, FISMA, NIST) on 
· HIPAA standards in 7B DAT.01.04, 7B SEC.01.64, 7B SYS.01.02,
· NIST standards in 7B INT.01.49, 7B SEC.01.42, 7B SEC.01.62, 7B SEC.01.67,
· FIPS standards in 7B SEC.01.30, 7B SEC.01.62, and,
· SOC standards in 7B SEC.01.39, 7B SEC.01.66.
· Explain any other US standards in your 5A.08 response, where proposers are to describe how/if they can meet the requirements with current resources.

	Q11
	Section 4.7/Appendix 4
	1
	We note the requirement
 to submit 3 Client-signed
 reference letters that have
 a minimum of:
 • 250,000 people
 who are a
 combination of
 members and
 annuitants, and
 • 500 employer
 groups
 As we are a UK-based
 company, the
 pension schemes are typically 
smaller than the US market.
 We have 2 significantly larger Funds that will enable us to provide 2 Client-signed reference letters to meet your requirements. Please
 can you advise if this
 would be acceptable?
	See Addendum 2 – published on October 24, 2024. 

	Q12
	General
	
	We require some type of project management site (e.g., SharePoint, Teams) to maintain/approve various project plans, action items, risk resisters, etc. Does ETF already have such a site in place that can be used in this project, or does the vendor need to provide one and include it in the costing?
	ETF will provide a project management site (e.g. SharePoint, Teams, Eclipse, etc.).

	Q13
	General 
	
	Can ETF provide the current DB size for all systems to be included in PAS so that the vendor can properly scope server requirements?
	The approximate size of the pension related data currently stored in structured databases at ETF is 100 GB.  However, this does not include disability data, correspondence management, CRM, etc. We expect the size of the data stored in the future state PAS to be significantly greater as there is functionality and data not in place in ETF’s current systems.

	Q14
	Appendix 5
5A.15 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
	5A.15.1 – 5A.15.9
	Does the 20-page restriction for section 5A.15 also include sub-questions 5A.15.1 through 5A.15.9? If so, is it possible to increase the total page limit, or exclude these questions for the narrative page limit?
	[bookmark: _Hlk181621807]The implementation plan identified in Appendix 5 section 5A.15 includes narrative and project schedule components. The 20-page limit applies to the narrative component. The narrative is limited to a maximum of 20 pages, including subsections 5A.15.1 through A5.15.9, as described in Appendix 5. See Appendix 5A – General Essay Questions – Revised per Addendum 4.

	Q15
	Appendix 6B
2 Variable Election

	2.04
	Please confirm our understanding of Variable Trust election investment is correct: 
Once a member elects to participate in the Variable Trust Fund, the PAS will be responsible for allocating the correct portion of contributions to the Variable Trust Fund. No other investment activity for the Variable Trust fund will occur in the PAS (i.e. rebalancing, member investment elections, etc.). 
If this is incorrect, can ETF provide more details on the scope of the Variable Investment activity to be performed within the PAS?
	WRS contributions are invested by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. ETF is responsible for allocating contributions and interest in the Core and Variable Trust Funds based on members variable election status which can include opting into and out of the Variable Trust Fund. Please see ETF Form ET-4930 for more detail.



	Q16
	Appendix 6B
2 Variable Election
	2.05
	Can EFT clarify 'VPS' in this requirement? Both the acronym as well as the purpose of this 'system'.
	VPS is the Variable Participant System.  The Variable Participant System (VPS) stores records for WRS participants who have elected variable participation or later opted to cancel their variable participation. VPS records are also maintained for beneficiaries or named survivors of deceased variable participants. VPS includes election, rejection, cancelation, and participation end dates due to benefit transactions. It is ETF’s expectation that the management of the variable fund is done within the PAS.

	Q17
	Appendix 7A - Non-Functional Essay Questions

	7A.48
	Does (or will) ETF have an iPaaS in place for the integration between the MDM system and PAS?
	Yes, ETF has an iPaaS in place and will share more details on how to interact with it during the implementation project.

	Q18
	Appendix 7B
*User Experience- UX

	UX.01.34
	Assuming incoming emails will be directly received by Outlook, can ETF clarify how this requirement is related to the PAS?
	If a message is sent from within the PAS, the system should clearly indicate the security status of how the message is being sent.

	Q19
	Appendix 7B
Data – DAT

	DAT.01.28
	Please clarify whether the requirement for Test Data Integration and Synchronization is intended to apply solely to the PAS system? Specifically, should we assume that the synchronization of test data with test region of Insurance system or MDM is out of scope for this requirement?
	ETF will need to sync data for testing purposes with its MDM and possibly with other systems, such as the insurance administration system. The details of this will be worked out during the implementation project.

	Q20
	Appendix 7B
Data – DAT
	DAT.01.31
	Our understanding is ETF will be for responsible for the following data conversion activities. Please confirm our understanding: 
Data Extraction from Legacy sources
Loading of extracted data to Staging DB
Data Mapping based on Target Solution requirements (working with vendor)
Creation of migration scripts where necessary
Data Cleansing 
Loading of final data to target staging area
Reconciliation of Source to Target Staging
Vendor is responsible for: 
Loading final data from Target staging into PAS system
Executing Data Validation 
Reconciliation reports for data load from staging to PAS
Will ETF be using a data conversion vendor to assist with any or all of the activities listed above?
	Yes, generally this is how the responsibilities will be set. Some of the technical details may shift but generally this is accurate. ETF assumes the ‘Creation of migration scripts where necessary’ is related to populating the staging DB/tables. ETF will likely not be using a vendor for the data conversion but instead doing so using ETF staff.

	Q21
	Appendix 7B
Data – DAT

	DAT.01.07
	Can ETF clarify the scenario for using a tool to add or modify data directly within the PAS? Is the requested tool more than a traditional interface file or API exchange?
	For importing (adding, removing, or modifying data) or extracting data, please indicate what tools (interface file, API, etc.) are available to do so within the platform in your proposal.

	Q22
	Appendix 7B
Data – DAT

	DAT.01.23
	Can ETF provide additional details on what is considered a change failure and how the percentage will be calculated. 
For example, does incident or outage only apply to blocking level defects where the system/process is down? 
Is the 5% calculated over time or per deployment?
	This was listed as being for question DAT.01.23, but ETF believes it is related to DEV.01.23 and is responding accordingly. A change failure is when a change is implemented and needs to be backed out due to a break that makes the system/function unusable or creates a situation where an unacceptable workaround would need to be performed. The change failure rate will be determined on a yearly basis.

	Q23
	Appendix 7B
Data – DAT

	DAT.01.02
	Does ETF already have DevOps licensing, or should vendors include this licensing cost in our proposal?
	ETF already has a DevOps product and licensing. The only DevOps products and licenses that should be included in the proposal are any DevOps products/licenses that are specifically required for the PAS solution being proposed.

	Q24
	Appendix 7B
Platform – PLT

	PLT.01.12
	If vendors have partnerships with more than one cloud hosting service provider (ex. Microsoft Azure or Amazon AWS), does ETF have a preference you would like us to consider when proposing our cloud solution?
	ETF does not have a preference. ETF encourages vendors to submit the proposal with a cloud hosting provider that they feel they can implement and support their proposed services most effectively.

	Q25
	Appendix 7B
Security – SEC

	SEC.01.02
	Can EFT provide additional information explaining this requirement? Who will be accessing these reports? If outside the PAS, where are these reports stored? Please elaborate what role the PAS will have in satisfying this requirement.
	ETF expects that access controls that apply to reports in the system, also apply to the archived reports stored in the system. Once a report is archived outside of the PAS, then it is the responsibility of the archiving party to appropriately protect the archived reports.

	Q26
	Appendix 5A, Question 5A.15
	3
	Please can you confirm if the maximum 20 pages for Appendix 5A.15.1 – 5A.15.9 is: 
· 20 pages total for 5A.15.1–5A.15.9 including the project plan, or
20 pages total for 5A.15.1–5A.15.9, with additional pages allowed for the project plan?
	See Department’s response to Q14. 

	Q27
	Appendix 6B – Functional Requirements.xls
	13 Payment Processing
	Please describe the party or parties responsible today and in future state for the physical creation of participant pension payment check/ACHs and tax forms.
	ETF is responsible for making the lump sum and annuity payments to members based on calculations and rules described in Wisconsin State Statutes. Currently this payment process is handled by ETF’s systems creating both banking files for ACH and Check and summary level financial vouchers to the State General Ledger System to approve the financial information within the General Ledger. ETF reviews the vouchers, DOA’s notification payment service request, and banking files with system reports to ensure accuracy of the payment files. After reviewing and assuming no errors are found ETF then approves the financial vouchers within Accounts Payable module of the State General Ledger System. After approval ETF sends a payment notification service request over to DOA-State Controller’s Office and DOA-Treasury.

ETF currently produces 3 tax forms. Forms 1099-R and W-2 are produced by ETF and mailed by DOA. Form 1042-S is produced and mailed by ETF.
 

	Q28
	ETE0061 PAS RFP document, Section 1.10
	14
	Please describe ETF’s preferred go-live date and any alternative
timeframes that may be considered.
	ETF expects the PAS functionality to be rolled out incrementally over time with all functionality indicated as needed in the RFP by the end of the overall implementation period specified in the RFP. ETF will work with the selected vendor as needed to determine the functionality to be deployed at different times based on the vendor’s product and best practices for implementing their solution.

	Q29
	Appendix 7D – Data Migration Catalog
	
	In the 20 systems, listed in Appendix 7D, is there duplication of basic member/employer data (name, address, etc), and how is this currently maintained)? Is there one system which acts as the master system/single source of truth for any / all of the common data where it’s duplicated across the systems?
	For ETF’s legacy systems there is not one system that is the master source of demographic data. However, ETF plans to use its Master Data Management platform as the master source of demographic data for the purposes of the implementation of the PAS and the sourcing of data to it.

	Q30
	Appendix 7D – Data Migration Catalog
	
	Do the ceding systems in Appendix 7D have unique identifiers to enable member and employer data to be easily matched to facilitate migration into a single PAS record? 
Or similarly, where there are multiple employments, is it always clear which employment relates to which member for benefit processing purposes? 
Is there a standard and consistent hierarchy for member and employment record structures across the different systems?
	ETF will have data in its Master Data Management system to identify member and employer data to be matched to facilitate migration into a single PAS record. The employment records for a member will have information about their salary, years, etc. for benefit processing purposes. ETF has built the hierarchy for associating members with employment records and expects to continue to refine it based on PAS needs.

	Q31
	Appendix 7D- Data Migration Catalog
	
	Do the ceding systems hold member / employer documents / images or are these held separately? Will historic and active documents / images need to be migrated and what format(s) are these held in? How many documents / images would have to be migrated?
	ETF’s current legacy systems hold documents but they will not need to be migrated into the PAS as they will be migrated into a document management system ETF manages.  ETF will work with the selected vendor to determine how those documents could be accessed through the PAS.

	Q32
	Appendix 7D-Data Migration Catalog
	
	In our experience, we anticipate the need to cleanse data ahead of or as part of the data migration. 
Who will be responsible for cleansing the data and when would you anticipate it being performed?
Will it be corrected on the source systems before migration, during migration through agreed rules or post-migration (or potentially a combination of all these)? 
Do you have any information on the general quality of the data or are you aware of any issues that could impact the approach or timescales for completing the migrations?
	ETF will partner with the selected vendor to determine the level of data cleansing that needs to be done relative to the data ETF has about employers and members from a demographics, eligibility, and account perspective. The corrective action could be taken in the current source systems, through a data transformation that gets the data ready to be imported into the PAS, or through the PAS import process and ETF will work with the selected vendor to determine the best place to do so. ETF has implemented a Master Data Management system to improve the quality of the member demographic and eligibility data, and ETF expects that to continue to improve over time both before and during the PAS implementation. There will be pension related functional data coming from the legacy systems at ETF that could need to be improved from a data quality perspective but that will be highly dependent on the selected vendor’s system and what it requires from a data conversion perspective.

	Q33
	Current W-9
	
	As we aren’t yet operating in the US market, we are not yet registered with the IRS. We have engaged US Financial Advisors they are assisting and advising us on the process to complete.
It is unlikely that this will be completed by the submission date of November 18th.
Please can you advise if it is acceptable to omit this form at this stage?

	It is acceptable to omit Form W-9 from the proposal if the proposer is unable to provide it at the time of proposal submission. A Form W-9 will be needed prior to contract execution, including contracting for the proof of concept, as a vendor’s FEIN appears on the contract and is required for ETF to do business.

	Q34
	Appendix 7C - PAS Interfaces Catalog
	Tab/Sheet ‘Interfaces’
INT#27 - IAS –BenefitFocus
	Can ETF confirm the current hosting model for the BenefitFocus application?
	It is hosted by BenefitFocus as a SaaS.

	Q35
	Appendix 4: Sections 4.7 and 4.8
	1-2
	Following ETF's modification of minimum requirements in Section 4.7 (Addendum 2), please advise if ETF will accept the following for reference letters for the lead project manager and lead architect. 
· One client-signed reference letter must attest to a minimum of 250,000 people (a combination of members and annuitants) and 500 employer groups.
Another client-signed reference letter must attest to a minimum of 100,000 people (a combination of members and annuitants) and 200 employer groups.
	Appendix 4 – Mandatory Proposer Qualifications, Section 4.8 has been amended to allow the lead project manager and lead architect to have a reference with at least 250 employer groups and at least 100,000 participants. See Appendix 4 edits to Section 4.8.



Add to Appendix 7A – Non-Functional Essay Questions the highlighted language below. Also see updated Appendix 7A.

7A.77
 
Describe how Proposer’s system optimizes the use of current up-to-date technology. Include details regarding any use of real-time processing, provisional and in-process save features, easily configurable/changeable data field parameters, dashboards, utility and other mass update capabilities, wizard-style guidance for entry screens, performance monitoring protocols, robust search and retrieval functionality, and context sensitive and other types of on-line help resources. 
 
7A.81
 
Describe Proposer’s ability to create, update, and manage correspondence content with items such as templates, free form text input fields, auto-population of key account data, signatures, capturing and validating digital signatures to ensure compliance with federal and state laws, and tools and functionality to generate and display content to show estimates, “what-if” scenarios, comparison and other analysis data, etc.

Note: Appendix 7B – Non-Functional Questionnaire and Appendix 8 – PAS Deliverables Catalog were unlocked to ensure the entire requirement in Column C or deliverable in Column E could be read. The unlocked versions were posted on November 1, 2024. No changes to these documents were made.
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